MAKK & CO.

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Luceat Realtors Private Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s. Luceat Realtors Private Limited
(“the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025 and the Statement of Profit and Loss
and statement of cash flows for the period then ended, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31%, 2025 and its Profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date is in
accordance to the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAl).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143 (10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current pericd. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is an
unlisted company.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’'s Report including Annexures to Board's Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablen counting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.




e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the
matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the “Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those bocks.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315 March, 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315! March, 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B". Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial contrels over financial reporting. :

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accord

according to the explanations given to us:




The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial statements;
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses. )
There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under subclause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend is declared or paid during the year, hence reporting as regards compliance with Section 123
of the Act is not applicable.

The company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
section 197(16) of the act is not applicable to the company.

As per the requirements of rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 the Company uses
accounting software for maintaining its books of account that have a feature of recording. audit trail of
each and every transaction creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with
the date when such changes were made within such accounting software. This feature of recording audit
trail has operated throughout the year except for certain transactions, changes made through specific
access and for direct database changes and no audit trail features were tampered during the year and
have been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirement for record retention.

For M/s. MAKK & Co.
(Formerly R. Jaitlia & Co.)

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 117246W

Mukesh Maheshwari
Partner

UDIN: 25049818BMNRHUSES

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10" May, 2025



MAKK & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Annexure A referred to in paragraph titled as “Report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of Auditor’s report to the members M/s. Luceat Realtors Private Limited
for the year ended 31%March, 2025.

On the basis of the records produced to us for our verification / perusal. Such checks as we
considered appropriate, and in terms of information and explanation given to us on our enquiries,
we state that:

i. As per information and explanation provided by the Company to us that, in respect of its
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of the Plant and Equipment. The Company does not have
property and Intangible assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment assets was physically verified during the year by the
Management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion,
provides for physical verification at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) Based on our examination we report that, the company does not hold any freehold land
disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment are held in the
name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right
of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) The management has conducted physical verification of stock in hand at reasonable
intervals during the year. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification of stock
in hand, development rights and work in progress.

(b) As per information and explanation provided by the Company to us, the Company does
not have any sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate,
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. (a) According the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has
not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or any other
parties.

According the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has
granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, unsecured, to Limited Liability Partnerships.
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vi.

vii.

viii.

Loans

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

- Others 6,00,00,000/-

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases

- Others 6,00,00,000/-

(b) The terms and conditions of the loans / advances granted are, in our opinion, prima facie,
not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest is as per stipulations.

(d) As per information and explanation provided by the Company to us, there is no overdue
amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end.

(e) As per information and explanation provided by the Company to us, No loan or advance in
the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same
parties.

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the audit
period. No loans were granted during the year to promoters.

According to the Information and explanation given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans,
Investments made, guarantees given and security as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there-under.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records as specified under subsection (1) of the section 148 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company and hence relevant provisions of the Order is not
applicable.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company,
the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees State insurance, Income Tax, GST and other statutory dues, as applicable,
with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the records of the company, there are no dues outstanding with respect to
income tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, GST and other statutory dues, as
applicable, on account of any dispute.




iX.

Xi.

-disclosed as income during the Audit period in the tax assessments under the Income Tax

Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Hence relevant provision of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Act.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies as defined under the
Act.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the
year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any
instance of fraud by the Company nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year nor have we been informed of any such instance by the
management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company and
according to the information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of
the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the order is not applicable to the Company.




Xil.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

xvii.

xviii.

XiX.

Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company:

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and so relevant clause is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, all transactions with related parties have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by applicable Indian accounting standards’.

The Company is the private limited company and does not have turnover of two hundred
crore rupees or more during the preceding financial year; or outstanding loans or borrowings

from banks or public financial institutions exceeding one hundred crore rupees or more at any

point of time during the preceding financial year. Hence Section 138 is not applicable and so

this clause is not applicable.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with any director of the Company.

a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit,
the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi) (d) are not
applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses for the Audit Period and in the immediately
preceding financial year incurred a cash losses (FY 2023-24) Rs. 400.90 Lacs.

During the year no statutory auditors have resigned, hence relevant clause is not applicable
to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the auditreg and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling dug/witt iod of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the compayly
fall due.




XX.

xXi.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to fund specified under
Schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013.

The company does not have net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of
rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the
immediately preceding financial year. Hence, Section 135 is not applicable and so this clause
is not applicable.

Clause (xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company since report is of Standalone
Financial Statement.

For M/s. MAKK & Co.

(Formerly R. Jaitlia & Co.)
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 117246W

Lhen

Mukesh Maheshwari
Partner

Membership No. 049818

UDIN: 25049818BMNRHUS5685
Place: Mumbai

Date: 10" May, 2025




MAKK & CO.

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF LUCEAT REALTORS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of LUCEAT REALTORS PRIVATE LIMITED
(“the Company”) as of March 31st 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAIl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that rg
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of managg B

company; and
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(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2025 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M/s. MAKK & Co.
(Formerly R. Jaitlia & Co.)
Chartered Accountants
FRN; 117246W

Ml

Mukesh Maheshwari
Partner

Membership No.: 049818
UDIN: 25049818BMNRHU5685
Place: Mumbai

Date: 10t May, 2025




Luccat Realtors Private Limited
Baiance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
Maich 31, 2024

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 2 1.16 2.07
Financial assels
Other financial asaets 3 65.00 45.00
[meome tax a S 4 - 259.83
Deferred tax assets 27 36.59 438.66
Total non-curvent assets 102.75 725.56
Current assets
Inventories 5 10,709.83 19.792.87
Financial assets
i. Trade receivables 6 129.04 -
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,358.29 898.45
iii. Loans 8 600.00 -
jv. Other financial zsseis 9 14.72 12.12
Other current assets 10 3,003.86 5,853.97
Total current assets 15,875.74 26,557.41
Total assets 15,078.49 27.282.07
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Eeuity
Repuity shate capital 11 1.72 172
Other equity
Rescives and surplus 11 2,444.04 1,263.75)
Total equity 2,445.76 (1,2G62.03)
LIABILITIES
Nen-current liabilities
Frovizions 12 22,73 14 82
Total non-curvent liabilites 22,73 14.32
Current liabilities
Fir=ncial labilities
i, Borcowin; 13 0.29 3,441.98
il. Trade payables 14
a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 1.06 14.62
b) Total autstanding dues of creditors other than (ii) (a) above 641.83 220.81
iii, Other financial liabilities 15 259.92 136.31
Provisions 16 30.53 25.2
Current tax lizhilities (net) 17 102.23 -
Other curcent liabilities 18 12,474.14 24.691.20
Total current liabilities 13,510.00 28.530.18
Total liabilities 13,532.73 28,545.00
Total equity and liabilities 15.078.49 27,282.97




Luceat Realtors Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Significant Accounting Policies

Notes of accounts forming integral part of special purpose financial stater 1
g sial p 2

As per our attached report of even date

For MAKK & Co.
Chartered Accountaits

Firm No.: 117246 W

Meheh.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Luceat Realtors Private Limited \

CIN: U7ozooMHz2017PTC301799

Mukesh Maheshwari

Ramesh Jogani Nilesh Nimbalkar
Partner Director Director
Membership No. : 049818 DIN: 00024828 DIN: 07987014

Place :- Mumbai
Date :



Luccat Realtors Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income

Revenie from operations 19 21,082.25 7.33
Other incuine 20 68.00 53.75
Total income 21,150.25 61.08
Expenses

Consliuction costs 21 5,120 69 4,115.61
Changes in inventories of construction work- in-progress 22 9,084.13 (4,115.61)
Employee benefit expense 23 232.89 247.17
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 0.91 2.17
Finance costs 25 - 4.96
Other expenses 26 744.27 241.40
Total expenscs 16,182.89 495.70
Profit/(loss) before tax 4,967.36 (434.62)
Income tax expense 27

- Current 1ax 852.65 -

- Deferred tax 403.29 (110.63)
Total tax expense 1,255.94 (110.63)
Profit/(loss) for the year 3,711.42 (323.99)
Other comprehensive income
Tiems that will not be reclussified to profit or loss (4.85) (2.10)

Income tax relating to ahove 1.22 0.55
Other comprehensive income fer the year (3.63) {1.56)
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,707.79 (325-55)
Not Annualised for the year ended March 31, 2025 Earning per share 36 21,526.69 (1,879.18)

(EPS) (BASIC and Diluted) (Nominal Value Rs.10)

Significant Accounting Policies
Notcs of accounts forming integral part of financial statement
As per our attached report of even date

For MAKK & Co,
Chartered Accountants

Firm No.: 117246W

Mukesh Maheshwari
Partner
Membership No. : 049818

Place :- Mumbai
Date :

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Luceat Realtors Private Limited

CIN: Uyc200MH2017PTC301799

Nilesh Nimbalkar
Director
DIN: 07987014

Ramesh Jogani
Director
DIN: 00024828



Luceat Realtors Private Limited
Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2625
(All amounts in INR Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended

March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Cash flows from operaling activities

Net (o) belore tax 4,067.34 (454.62)
Adjustments :
Depreciation and amartizalion expenses 0.91 2.17
Emplosce stock aplion expense 28 79 28 55
Interest incoime (67.48) (52.53)
Finance costs 142.20 477.77
Operaling cash flow before working capital changes
(Inerease) in inventories 9,083.04 (4,114.96)
(Increase)/ decrense in other current assels 2,790.12 (2,114.45)
Inerease [/ (decrease) in trade payables 407.48 (13.99)
Increase in other financial liahilities 04.81 5064
Tnercase in provisions 832 7.22
Increase in other curtent liahilities (12,217.05) 8.343.45
Cash uscd in operations activities 5,109.44 2,179.34
Income taxes paid (510.59) (85.15)
Net eash outflow from operating activities (A) 4.598.85 2,094.19
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchiase of Property, Plunt and equipment - (0.n5)
Loans and advances to gronp companies (Bon.no) -
Bank deposits placed duning the year (20.00) (45 00)
Rank deposits matured during the year - 11.00
Interest received 64.88 5608
Net cash outflow from investing activities (B) (555.12) 22.03
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings (1,442 36) (1,800.60)
Finance costs paid (2,141.53) (105.41)
Net cash inflow by financing activities (C) (3.583.89) (1,905.41)
Net inerease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 450 84 210.81
Cash and cush equivalents at beginning of the year 808 45 687.64
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the year 1,358.29 898.45
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cashin hand 0.02 0.04
Deposits with matority of less than 3 months 1,150.00 200.00
Balances with banks in current accounts 208 27 608 41
1,358.29 898.45
Notes:
Net Debt reconciliation
Particulars Asat Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Borrowings (ncluding interest accried) 0.29 3,441.98

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Balance 3,441.98 4,869.62
Proceeds from borrowings - -
Repayrnent of barrowings (1,442.36) (1,800.00)
Interest expense recorded in profit and loss 142.20 477.77
Finance cos's paid (2,141.53) (105.41)
Closing Balance 0.29 3,441.98




Luccat Realtors Private Limited
Cash Flow for the ycar ended March 31, 2625
(All amounts in INR Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

As perour alta hed repoit of even dote
For MAKK & Co.
Charlered Accountants
Firm No.: 1172 16W

Mukesh Maheshwari
Partner
Meinlership No. : 045818

Place :- Mumbai
Date:

For and on behalf of the Board of Dir
Laiceat Realtors Private Limiled
CIN: UyuzooMHzo17P 1C301799

Ramesh Jogani NileslY'Nimbalkar
Direcior Directar
DIN: 00024828 DIN: oyy87014



Luceat Reallors Private Limited
Stalewent of changes in cquity for the year ended Macch 31, 2025
(Allamounls in INR Lakh, unless aotherwise stuted)

A. Equity share capilal

Particulars Amount

Asat April o1, 2023 100
Ch 5 in equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2024 1.00
Changes in squity share capilal -
As at March 31, 2025 1.00

B. Other equity

Reserve and Surplus

Retained earnings

Items of Other
Comphrensive Income

Total other equity

As at April o1, 2023 (939.54) 1.35 (938.19)
(Loss) for the year (323.99) - (323.99)
Other comprelensive incomea - (1.50) (1.56)
Tulal comprehensive income for the year (323.99) (1.56) (325.55)
Asat March 31, 2024 (1,263.52 (0.21) (1,263.74)
(Loaa) for the year 7148 - 3,711.42
Ciliet sehensive incom - (2 A7) (3 67)
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,711.42 (3.63) 3,707.79
As at March 31, 2025 2,447.89 (3.89) 2,444.05

As per our attached report of even dale

For MAKK & Co.
Chastered Accountanls
Firm No.: 11

Mukesh Maheshwari
Partoer

MembershipNo. : 049818

Ramesh Jogani
Director

DIN: o0024828

Piace ;- Mumbai
Date:

Tor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Luccut Realtors Private Limited
CIN: UyozooMHze17PTC30799

Director

DIN: o787014




Luccat Realtors Private Limited
Notes Lo the financial statements as at and for the year ended Macch 31, 20625
(All ammounts in INR Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Background
Lzt Realtors Private Limited (the Company’) is a private limited Company, incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at
702, Natraj, M V Road Junction, Andheri East, Miimbai 400 009,

The Company is incarporated since November 15, 2017 and is engaged primacily in the business of real estale constructions, development and other
related activities in Mimbai.

Note 1A: Basis of preparation
(l) Chiul'l]'t;klu::’: with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) natified under Section
133 of the Campanies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] as amended from time to time and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention

11 .

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
« cerlain financial assots and financial liabilities are measured at fair value;

» defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;
+ share based payment measured at fair value;

(11) Current - non current elassification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating cycle and other eriteria set out in the Schedule
I to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of assels for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 4 years for the purpose of current - nom-current classificalion of asscls
and liahilities. Operating cycle for all completed projects is based on 12 months perind,

Note 1B: Material Accounting Policies

(a) Revenue recognition

Revenne from conlracts with eustomers is tecognized when control of the goods or servives are transferred to the custamer at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expects to be entifled in exchange for those goods or services, Revenue is measured based on the transaction
prive, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other credits, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. The Campany
preseiits revenue from conlracts with customers net of indirect towes in its statement of Profit and Toss. The Company asscsses its revenne
arcangements agiinst specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Company has eomeluded that it is acting ag a principal in all
of its revenne arrangement.

Inceme from Property development

The Company considers whether there are other promiscs in the contract that are separate performance ohligations to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated, In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the
existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and comsideration payable to the customer (if any).

The Company satisfies a performance ohligation and recognise the revenue ever the time if the Company's performance does nol ereate an assel with
an alternalive use to the Compauny and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date basis the agreement entered
with custamers, otherwise revenue is recognized point in time. The revenue from real estate development of residential unit is recognised at the point
in time, when the control of the assct is transferred to the customer and the performance ohligation is satisfied i.e on transfer of legal title of the
residential unit, receipt of aceupation certificate and final demand letter issued to the customers which generally oceurs on completion of project.

The Campany becomes entitled to invoice customers for construction of residential and commercial properties basced on achieving a series of
construction-linked milestones. When the Company satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services it creates a
comlract asset based on the amonnt of consideration earned by the performance. Any amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified
to trade receivables at the point when the Coimpany has the right to consideration that is unconditional. If a cuslomer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or setvices to the customer, a contract liahility is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
carlier). Contract Tiabililies are recognised as revenie when the Company performs under the contract.

The Campany recognizes incremental costs for obiaining a contract as an asset and such costs are charged to the Stalement of Profit and Ioss when
revenue is recognised for the said contract.




Luceat Realtors Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period s the tax payable on the eurrent period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rale
adjnsted by changes in deferred tax assots and lishilities attributable to temporary difforences and to unused tax Josses,

(i) Curtenl incoime Lax

The current ineome tax charge is caleulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reparting period. The
provision for current tax is made at the rate of tax as applicable for the income of the previous year as defined under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Manazement periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is snbject to
interpretation. It estahlishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Current tax asscts and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to seltle on a net basis, or to
tealize the assct and settle the liahility simultaneously,

(11) Deferred tax

Deferred incomie tax is recognised using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax hases of assels and liabilities and their
carrying amonnts as per financial statements as at the reporting date. Deferred income tax is also not acconnied for if it arises from initial recognition
of an assct or liahility in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neilher accounting profit nor
taxable profit (tax loss).

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expecied to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income Lax liability is settied.

Deferred tax asscts are recognised to the extent that it is probahle that future taxahle income will be available against which the deductible temporaty
differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxahle profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tix assels are re-ass ssed at each
reparting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assels to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assels are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventuies and associates where it is pot probable that the differences will reverse in the foresceahle future and taxable profit will not be available
against which the temporary difference can be uiilised.

Deferred tax asscts and liahilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset eurrent tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation autherity.

Current and deferred tax is tecognised in peofit or Toss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(¢) Leases

As alessee

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. liahililies include the net present value of the fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable, The lease payments are disconnted using the interest rale implicit in the
leasc. If that rale cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee's incremental borrowing rale is used,
being the rate that the individual lessce would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right of-use asset in
a similar economic eavitonment with similar tevms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company uses recent thivd-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost, The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of intercst on the remaining balance of the liability for each periad.

Right-of-use asscts are measured at cost eamprising the following:

« the amount of the initial measuremient of lease liability

« any lease payments made at or before the commencement date loss any incentives received
« any initial direct costs, and

s pestoration costs,

Right-of-use assels are generally deprecialed over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a siraight-line basis. If the Campany is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

profit or Joss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended Mavch 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

As alessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct
cost incurred ohlaining an operaling lease are added to the carrying amonnt of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on
the same basis as lease income. The tespective leased assets ave included in the balance sheet hased on their nature.

(d) Impairiment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible asscts that have an indefinite useful life are not sulject to amortisation and ave tested annually [or impaitient, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other asscis are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in eireumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
assel's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverahle amaonnt is the higher of an assel's fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there ave scparately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets{eash-generating uniis). Non-financial assels other than goodwill that
snffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairmeat at the end of each reporting period.

(e) Cash and cash equivalernts

Fur the purpose of prescatation in the standalone statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held on call with
financial institutions, other short-term highly liqnid investments with original maturities of less than three months that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and hank overdraft. Bank overdrafts are shown within
horrowings in current linbilities in the standalone halance sheet,

(f) Trade receivables

Trade receivahles are amounts due from customers for goods sold or servives performed in the ordinaty course of business. Trade receivables are
recognised initially at the Lransaction price as they da not contain significant financing components. The company holds the trade receivables with the
ahjective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measuces them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest methad, less
Joss allowance,

(g) Inventorics

Inventories are valued as under:

(i) Inventory of completed saleable units

Inventory of completed saleable units and stock-in-trade of units is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

(11) Construction work-in-progress

The construction work-in-progress is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes cost of land, development rights, rates and laxes,
consteuction costs, boarrowing costs, other direct expendilure, and appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being
allocated on the basis of normal operaling capacity. Cost of inventories alsa include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and comdition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

iif) Comstrictinn malerials

The construction materials are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, Cost of construction material compriscs cost of purchases on maoving
weighted average basis. Costs of inventory includes rates and taxes and other direct expenditure are determined after deducting rebates and
disconmts,
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(h) Financial instruments

A financial instrwment is any contract that gives rise to a financial assct of one entily and a financial liability or equily instrument of another entity.

Financial assots and liabililies are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets:

Classification

The Campany (lassifies its financial assets in the following measurement categorios:

« those to be measured subsequently at fair vatue (gither through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

« those mieasnred at aniortised cost

The classificalion depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial asscts and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Initial recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Companies commits to purchase or sale the
financial asset, Financial asscis are recognised indtially at fair value plus (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing
compenent), in the case of financial asscts nat recorded at fair value throngh profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset, Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed of in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are subscquently measured at amortised cost, fair value throngh other comprehensive income (FVOCT ) or fair value thiough profit
or loss (‘FVTPL) till de-recagnition on the hasis of (i) the entily's business model for managing the financial assets and (i) the o mttactual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.

Amortised cost:

As<ets that are held for eollection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows tepresent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost, A gain or Joss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or Toss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Intecest income from these financial asscts is included in other income using
the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets” cash flows represent solely paymients
of principal and interest, are measnred at FVOCL Movements in the cartying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recagnition of impaitment
gaing or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the eumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclussified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other income /
(expenses). Interest income from these financial assets is incdluded in other income nsing the effective interest rate methad,

Fair value thiough profit or loss (FVTPL):

Asscts that do not meet the criteria for amartised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or Ioss on a debt investment that is subscquently
measured at fair value throngh profit or loss is tecognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises, Interest income from these financial asscts
are recognised in other income.

Equity instruments
All equily investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For
all gther equily instruments, the Group decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT) or FVTPL.

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis, The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,

If the Company decides to classify an equily instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognised in other comprehensive income (OCT). There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and Joss, even on sale of such investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVIPL category are measured at fair value with all changes rec sgnised in the consolidated statement of profil
and loss.

Impairment of financial assets
The Campany assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its asseis carried at amartised cost. The impairment
methadology applied degends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk

Derecognition of financial assets

A finaneial asset is derecognized only when:

« the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assct or

« yelaing the contractnal rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or
more recipients.
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Wheve the entity has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred sobstantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Wheie the entity has neither transfeirred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and revwards of ownership of the financial asset, the
finsncial assot is derevognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial assct. Whete the Company retains contiol of the financial
aecct, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continning involvement in the financial asset.

Income recognition

Interest income
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost is caleulated using the effective intercst rate method and recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and liss as part of ather income.

Interest income is ealenlated by applying the effective intercst rate to the gross carrying amonnt of financial assel except for financial asscis that
subscguently becoime credit-impaired. Tor eredit-impaired financial asscis the effective rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset (after deduction of the loss allowancee)

Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets at fair value thicugh profit or loss and at FVOCL Dividends are recognised as other income in profit or
loss when the right to receive payment is established, This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly a
recovery part of the cost of the investinent,

Other income
All other income is accounted on acerual basis when no significant uncertainty exist regarding the amount that will be received.

Finanecial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liahililies are initially measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial liahility not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue/ origination of the financial liability.

Subseguent measurement

Financial liabililies are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVIPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for
trading, or itis a derivalive or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liahilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
comsolidated statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognilion is also recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial liahility is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial asscts and liabilities are offset and the nel amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet whete there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to setile on a net basis or realise the asset and setile the Liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future evenis and must be enforcesble in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankiupley of the Company or the coumterparty.

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Ttems of property, plant and eguipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost comprises of the
purchase price including import dutics and non-refundable taxes and directly attributable expenscs incurred to bring the asset to the lacatiom and
condition necessary for it to be capable of being operated in the manner intended by management.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate assct, as appropriale, only when it is pr hable that future
econamic benefits associaled with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured refiably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Deprecialion is calenlated using the written down value method (except for office improvements which are being depreciated on straight line
methad), to allacate their cost, net of residual values, over the estimated usefid lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives is in aco wwdance with the
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, except in case of plant and machinery which is based on technical evaluation done by the management's
expert, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,
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The manag ment estiniates the useful life for the property, plant and equipment as follows:

Asset Useful Life

Plant and machinery 6ycars

Office equipiment 5 ycars

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Computeis 3 years

Vehicles 8 years

Gains and losses on disposals ave determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amonnt. These are included in profit or loss within other income /

other expenscs,

Leaschald improvements are depreciated over the sharier of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity expects to use the usseis beyond the
lease term.

(§) Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not ocvupied by the Company, are elassified as
investment properties. Investment properties are measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. Subsequent expenditure is capilalised to the assel’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associaled with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when
incurred. When patt of an investient property is replaced, the cartying amount of the replaced part is derec ignised.

Innestment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method aver their estimated useful lives. Investment properties generally have a uscful
life of 60 yeurs (other than RCC structure 30 years),

(k) Goodwill:

Goodwill is nat amertised but it is tested for impairment annually, or mare frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate thal it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Geodwill is allocated to cash-generating unils for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to thase cash-generating units or
Campany of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit frum the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or Company of
units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for intermal management purposes

(D) Intangible asscts

Intangible asscis are stated at acquisition eost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible asscis are
amorlised on a wrilten down value basis over their estimated useful lives,

The management estimates the uscful life for the intangible asset is as follows:

Assct Useful Life
Compuler software 5ycars

An gsset’s cartying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amonnt,

Gains and losses an disposals are determined by comparing procecds with carrying amonnt. These are inclided in profit or loss within other income /
other expenses.

(m) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other
payables are presented as eurrent liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 memths after the reporting perind or operating cyele, as applicable.
They ate revngnised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inferest method,

(n) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs ineurred. Borrowings are stbscquently measured at amortised cosl. Any
difference between the procecds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amaount is recognised in profit or lss uver the peviod of the borrowings
nsing the effective interest methaod.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redecmable on a specific date, are clussified as liahilities. The dividends on these preference shares are
recognised in profit or Joss as finance costs,
Borrowings are removed from the standalone balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expiced. The

difference between the carrving amount of a financial liability that has been extingnished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income / other expenses,
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Where the terms of a financial liahility are rencgotinted and the entily issies equity instruments to a ereditor to extinguish all or part of the liahility
(deht for equily swap), a gein or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measived as the difference between the eartying amount of the financial
Tiahility and the fair vaine of the equity instiiments fsied

An exchange between an exisling barrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms shall be accounted for as an
extingnishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial lahility, Similarly, a substantial madification of the terms of an
existing financial liahility or a part of it (whether or nat attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is aceounted for as an extingnishment of
the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liahility (or
patt of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any nom-cash assels transfetred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss,
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Rarrowings are clossified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 38 months
after the reparting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term oan acgngement on or before the end of the reporting
perind with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity daes not elassify the liahility as current, if the
lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the consalidated financial statements for issue, nol to demand payment as a
conscquence of the breach,

(0) Borrowing cost

General and specific hortuwing costs thal are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying assct are capitalised
during the perind of time (except for the contract on which revenue is recognised over the period of time) that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assels that necessarily take a substantial periad of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, Capilalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the consolidated statement of peofit and loss during extended perinds when active
develnpment activity on the qualifying asset is intertupted.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific barrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying asscts is deducted from the
botrowing costs eligible for capilalisation.

Other horrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they ave incuired.

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past events, it is probable that an outflow of tesourves
embidying econamic benefits will be required to settle the ohligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the ohligation. Provisions are
niat recognised for future operating losses,

Provisions are measured at the presenut valie of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present ohligation at the end of
the reporting period. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected fulure cash flows ata
pre-tax rate that reflects enrrent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liahilities are disclosed when there is a possihle ohligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
AeeUITenee OT NoN-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events nat wholly within the contral of the Compaay, or a preseat obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an ontflow of resources will be required to sctile the obligation or a reliable cslimate of the
amount cannot be made.

(q) Employee benefits

(i) Short terin ohligations

Tiahilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary henefits that are expecied to be settled wholly within period of operating cycle after the end
of the perind in which the emplayecs render the related secvive are recognised in tespect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expecied to be paid when the liabilities are scttled.

(ii) Other long term employce benefit obligations

The lishilities for earned leave are not expected to be setfled wholly within perind of operating cycle after the end of the period in which the employces
render the related service, They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end
of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustiments
and ehanges in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. The ohligations are presented as current liahililies in the balance sheel if the
Company does not have an unconditional right to defer seitlement for at least twelve months afier the reporting perind, regardless of when the actual
selllement is expected to oecur,

(iii) Post-employment obligations
The Group operates the following post-emplovment schermes,

defined benefit plan ie. graluity
defined contribution plans such ag provident fund

Gratuity obligalions

The liahility or osset recognised in the consolidated balance sheet in respeet of defined henefit gratulty plan is the present value of the defined benefit
ohligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan asscts. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated annually by actuaries using
the prujected unit eredit method,

The prescnt value of the defined benefit ohligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by teference to markel yields at
the end of the reporting petind on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terins of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assels.
This cost is inclnded in employee benefits expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and Josses arising from experience adjustments and changes in acluarial assumplions are rec ignised in the period in which
they oceur, directly in other comprehensive income,

They ate included in retained earnings in the standalone statement of changes in equity and in the standalone hal

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resuliing from plan amendments or eurtaiimen avef e ognised irprs](-.?‘“li tely in profit
or loss as pust service cost,
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Defined contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund, ESIC, ete. contributions to publicly adininistered provident funds and other funds as per local regulaticns. The
Company has no further payment obiligition once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans
and the contributions are recognised as employee benefits expense when they are incurred,

(iv) Employce options

The fair valie of options granted under the Rustomjee Emplayee Sinck Option Plan 2023 is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a
cortespanding inerease in equily. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair valie of the options granted:

« including any market performance conditions (e.g. the entity’s share price).

« excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
emplayce of the entity over a specified time period),

« inclinding the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for employecs to save or hald shares for a specific period of time).

The total expense is tecognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the enlity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
comditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to ariginal estimales, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equily.

For Group transactions involve repayment arrangements that require ene group entity to pay another group entity for the provision of the share-
based payments to the suppliers of goods or servives. In such cases, the entity that receives the goods or services shall account as a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction.

Where shares are farfeiled due to a failure by the employee to satisfy the servive conditions, any expenses previously recognised in relation to such
shares are reversed effective from the date of the forfeiture,

(v) Earnings per share
(i) Rasic earnings per share

Dasic garnings per share is calenlated by dividing:
« The profit attributable to awners of respective class of equity shares of the Company
« By the weighted avernge number of equily shates (tespective class wise) outstanding duriag the financial year.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of busic earnings per share to take into account:
« the after income tax effect of intercst and other financing costs assoviated with dilutive potential equily shares, and
« the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been oulstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equily

shaies.

(r) Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the standalone financial statements and notes have been tounded off to the nearest Iakhs, unless otherwise stated, Amonnt
below ronnding off norms adopted by the Company has been represented by *.

Note 1C : Other Accounting Polocies
(a) Segment reporting

Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operaling devision maker (CODM).

The Board of Direciors of the Company has been identified as being the CODM as they assesses the financial performance and position of the
Company, and makes strategic decisions.

(b) Foreign currency translation

(1) Funetional and presentation currency

Ttems included in the standalone financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates ('the funeiional currency’). The standalone financial statemeits are presented in Indian Tupee (INR), which is the functional
and presentation enreency of the Company.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency lransactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
givins and losses resulling from the settlement of such transactions and from the transtation of monetary asscts and liahilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or Joss. A monetazy item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to
aceur in the foresceable future is considered as a part of the entity’s net investment in that foreign operation.
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(¢) Contributed equity
Eauity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental eosts directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of Lax, from the provecds

(d) Dividend

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropeiately authorised and no langer at the diseretion of the entity, on or before
the end of the reporting period but not distribuied at the end of the reporting pedind.

Note 1D: Changes in accounting policies and disclosurcs
New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated g September 2024 and 28 Seplember 2024 notified the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024 and Companics (Indian Accounting Standaids) Third Amendment Rules, 2024, respectively, which
amended/ notified certain accounting standards (sce below), and are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2624:

« Insurance contracts - Ind AS 117; and

« Lease Liability in Sale and Leaschack — Amendments to Ind AS 116

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future petiods,

New amendments issued but not effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified Comipanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023 (the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and are effeciive 1 April 2023,

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The other amendments to Ind AS
notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the company in the current or fulure reporting periods and on foresceable future
transactions. Specifically, no changes wonld be necessary as a eonsequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the companie's accounting policy
already complies with the mandatory treatiment.

Note 1E: Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of standalone financial statements requires the nise of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Manzgement alse needs to exercise judgment in applying the Company'’s accounting policies. This note provides an overview of the areas that
involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be miaterially adjusted due to estimates and assumplions
turning out to be different than those originally assessed.

« Revenue Recognition (Refer Note 1B(a) above)
Reventie from sale of teal estate inventory is recognised at a point in time or over the period based on the contract entered with the customers,

« Evaluation of net realisable value of inventories (Refer Note 1B(g) above)

Inventories comprising of finished goods and construction work-in progress are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Net Realisable value
is hased upen the estimates of the management. The effect of changes, if any, to the estimates is recognised in the Financial Statements for the periad
in which such changes are determined,

« Impairment losses on Investments and Impairment of financial asscls (Refer Note 1B(h) above)

In ossessing impaitment, management estimates the recoverable amounts of Investments based on expected future cash flows and uses an inlerest
rate to disconnt them. Estimation unceriainty relates to assumptions about future cash flows and the determination of a suitable disconunt rate. For
financial asscts, as at each balance sheet dale, based on histarical default rates obscrved over expected life, the management assesscs the expected
credit Joss on oulstanding financial assels
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Note 2 - Property, plant and equipment

Particulars P]ant_ and Computers Total
machinery

Year ended March 31, 2024

Gross carrying amount

Qpening gross carrying amount 4.68 5.65 10.33

Additinns 0.05 - 0.05

Di:jn i'\-w‘ls = = -

Closing gross carrying amount 4.73 5.65 10.38

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation 2.80 3.34 6.14

Depreciation charge during the year 0.87 1.30 2.17

Dibl.ll wals = = -

Closing accumulated depreciation 3.67 4.64 8.31

Net carrying amount 1.06 1.01 2.07

Year ended March 31, 2025

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amonnt 4.73 5.65 10.38

Aﬂ ditions - = =

Displ wals - - -

Closing gross carrying amount 4.73 5.65 10.38

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Opening accumulated depreciation 3.67 4.64 8.31

Depreciation charge during the year 0.19 0.72 0.91

Di:-l_u sals - - =

Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment 3.86 5.36 9.22

Net carrying amount 0.87 0.29 1.16
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Nute 3 - Other non-current financial assets

Particulars Asat Asat

‘ March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance y de 65 00 4500
Securily - -
Total 65.00 45.00

Nole 4 - Income tax asscis (net)

. Asat Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 202g4
Advance tox including Lax deducted at souice - 23983
Total = 239.83

Note 5- Invenlories

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1,145.63 =
L0g -

9,563.11 19,792.87

Total

Note 6 - Trade receivables

10,709.83

19,792.87

: . Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables 129.04 -
Receivable from Reluted parties - -
Total 129.04 -
Notie 7 - Cash and cash equivalents

Asat Asat

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 202

s 20R 27 69241

0n2 0.ng

Deposits with maturity of less than 3 months 1,150 00 200.00
Total 1,358.29 898.45

Nole 8 - Loans

Particulars

Asat
Maich 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Loan
Le 6on .00 =
Total 600.00 -

Break-up of security details

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lo 2 -
Lo AO0 DO -
I nans which ha se in eredit risk , -
La - -
Total 600.00 =
Loss allowanes = =
Total loans 600.00 &
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s

15 or Advances in the natute of los

either severally or jointly with any otl

s are granted to Promoters, defined nnder Companies Aet, 2013,)

ar director or member,

T pers

Percentage to the
total Loans and
Advances
in the nature of loans

Amuount of loan or
advance in the nature
of loan oulstanding

Type of Borrower

As at March 31, 2025

Promoters = 4
Directnrs - -
KMPs - -

Related Parlies

As at March 31, 2024
Promoters

Directors

KMPs

RBelated Parties

Note g - Other current financial assets

Particular Asat As at
aeReRes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest seorued on deposits with b 9.98 7.38
Secutily deposits- with lond owners o acteties. 4.74 4.74
Total 14.72 12.12

Note 10 - Other current assets
Particul Asat Asat
o March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
= for su vl services {inclod refer note 33) 1,667 69 9,146 00
to Landown S 18 0o
UNVELTLT 1R 06 0.43
aid expenses (include contract cost INR 1,326.97 (March 31, 2023: INR 2,622.93)) 1,381.21 2 AFF Ay
Total 3,063.86 5.853.97
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Note 11 - Share capital and other equity

11(a) - Equity share capital
(i) Authorised share capital

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

10,000 (March 31, 2024: 10,000) Class A Equily Shares of 100 1.00
10,000 (March 31, 2024: 10,000) Class B Equily Shares of Rs. 10 each 1.00 1.00
2.00 2.00

(ii) Issued, subscribed and paid up

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

10,000 (March 31, 20241 10,000) Class "A" equity shares of INR 10 each (Tully paid-up) 100 1.00
7,241 (March 31, 2024: 7,241) Class "B" equity shares of INR 10 each (fully paid-up) 0.72 0.72
1.72 1.72
(iii) Movements in equily share capital
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2024
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

Class "A" equity sharcs

Balance as at the beginning of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 100
Incrense during the year i = = =

Balance as at the end of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

Class "B" equity shares

Ralance as at the beginning of the year 7,241 0.72 7,241.00 0.72
Incecase during the year = - - -

Balance as at the end of the ycar 7,241 0.72 7,241 0.72

Rights, preferences and restriclions attached to equity shares.

During the previous year under review company has converted its existing equily shares into Class A equity shaies and introduced new elass ie eliss B

shares
The Company has two classes of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 cach, Each
equity shaceh lers have the right to preferential distribution amounting to INR 3,0
= to receive temaining assets of the Company after distribution of all pr eferential amaunts, in pr

(iv) Shares of the company held by holding company

.5 of sharehalder is eligible for one vole per shaze held, Class A
khs, In the event of liquidation, the equity shure halders are
tion to their share holdings.

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2025

Asat

March 31, 2024

Class A equity shares
1oooo [March 31, 2024: 10000] equity shares of Rs 10 cach, fully paid up are

held by Keystone Realtors Limited 1.00 100

Class B equity shares

7,241 [March 31, 2024: 7,241] equily shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up are hield

by Augnsta hamies R al Cstate Private Limited 0.72 0.72

(v) Delails of shareholders holding move than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 I As at March 31, 2024 i
Number of shares % Holding Number of shares % Holding

Class A equity shares

Keystone Realtors Limited 10,000 58.00% 10,000 58 au%

Class B equity shares

Augusta homes Real Estate Private Limited 7,241 42.00% 7,241 42.00%
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(vi) Shareholding of prumoters are disclosed below:

Name of Promolers

Number of shares

% Tolal shaves

% Changes
during the ycar

As at March 31, 2025
Class A equity shares

Keystane Realtors Limited 10,000 8% B
Class B equity sharcs
Angusta homes Real Estute Private Limited 7,241 42% -

As at March 31, 2024
Class A equity shares
Keystone Realtors Limited 10,000 58% =

Class B equity sharces
Angusta homes Beal Estale Private Limited 7,241 42% -
11(b) - Reserves and surplus

y Asat As at
- 1 o
Rertatom March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Retained earnings 2,444.04 (1,202.75)
Total 2,444.04 (1,263.75)
(1) Relained eariiings
. As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance (1,263.75) (¢3R.20)
Add: Net (loss) for the year 3,711.42 (323.99)
Other comprehensive income - remeasuremcnts of post employment benefit plan (3.63) (1.56)
Closing balance 2,444.04 (1,263.75)
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Note 12 - Long term provisions

ended March 31, 2025

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Provision for employee benefit

Gratuity (refer note 31)

22.73

Tolal

Note 13 - Borrowings

22,73

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Unsecured (repayable on demand)

Loan from Related parties (refer note 33) 0.29 3,441.98
Total 0.29 3,441.98
Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings:
Unsecured Loans and advances from related parties
Depasits from related parties are repayable on demand and carry an interest @ 18%.p.a.
Note 14 - Trade payables
Particulars Asat i
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Trade payables

Dues to micro and small enterprises 1.06 14.62

Dues to others 61848 210.73

Trade payables to related party (refer note 33) 23.35 1.08
Total 642.89 235.43
Trade payable ageing Schedules for the year ended March 31, 2025 and year ended March 31, 2024:
Outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2025 from the due date of payment

Particulars MSME Others
Unhilled
Note Due
Less than 1 year
1-2 year
2- g years
More the 3 years
Total = =
Outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2024 from the due date of payment
Particulars MSME Others

Unbhilled - 201.48
Note Due 083 12.50
Less than 1 year 13.79 5.92
1-2 year - 0.62
2- 3 yeats - 0.29
Maore the 3 years - -
Total 14.62 220.81

Note: Company does not have any disputed trade payables to MSME & others
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Note 15 - Other current financial liabilities

Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employee benefits payable 42.42 51.89
Refundable towards cancelled units 887 17.15
Deposit and other charges payable to society (net) 139.95 -
Other pay ables 68 68 6727
Total 259.92 136.31
Note 16 - Current provisions

As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Provision for employee Benefit (refer note 31)

Compensated absences 27.11 22,72
Graluity 3.42 2.54
Total 30.53 25.26
Note 17 - Current tax liabilities (net)
. As at As at
rti
Particalars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income tax provisions [net of Advanee tax including tax dedncted at source of INR 750.42, 102.23
(March 31, 2024: INR Nil)]
Total 102.23 -
Note 18 - Other current liabilities
; As at As at
Exrticulare March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advances from custamers (Contract Liabilities) (Refer note below) 12,440.73 24,613.79
Statutory dues payuable 33.41 77.41
Total 12,474.14 24,691.20
Note:

A contract Hahility is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the company has received consideration (or an amount
of cansideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers gnads or services to the customer, a
contract liahility is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liahilities are recognised as

revenne when the company performs under the contract.

Advance from customers expecied to be setiled greater than 1 year is INR Nil (March 31, 2023:INR Nil)
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Naote 19 - Revenue from operations

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
Maich 31, 2024

Operating Revenue

Revenue from projecis

Other operating income

Others (inclnding sale of construction material)

20,501.27

130.98

Total

Note 20 - Other income

21,082.25

Barticilais Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest
On deposits with hanks 50.64 51.40
Others 7.84 1.13
Miscellaneais inconie 0.52 1.22
Total 68.00 53-75

Note 21 - Construction Costs

Year ended

Year ended

Fariculas March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cost of land, development righls and related exp 307.86 -
Cost of material consumied (Refer note 214a)) 106.70 8.24
Lebour and contractual expenses 4,659.40 3.025.53
FSI, TDR and other approy al cost 254.90 50 87
Power and fuel 45.70 _
Insurance 6.22 5.70
s 29 .69 58.22

Securily charges 49.90 31.18
Technical and consultancy fees 78 83 60,49
Tra ort charges 006 =
Other site operalion expenscs 1.97 1.33
Allocated expenscs to the project

Frmploves benefit expenses 413.41 38z2.29

Finanee costs 142.20 477.78

Other expeiises 23.85 4.98
Total 6,120.69 4,115.61

Note 21 (a)- Cost of materials consumed

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

terial at begining of the year

chses 107.79 7-59
Less:- Raw material at end of the year 1.09 =
Tolal cost of materials consumed 106.70 7.59

Note 22 - Changes in inventories work in progress

Year ended

Year ended

Particulats Maich 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening Stock

Construetion work in progress 19,742.87 15,677.26

Total (A) 19,792.87 15,677.26

Closing Stock

Ceanpleted saleable unils 1,145 63 =

Construetion work in progress 9.503.11 10,792.87

Tolal (B) b K 3Q,708.74 19,792.87
(o5~ N

Increase/ (Decrease) in stock (B-A) < (9. 8y.13) 4,115.61

'\*
) 2
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Note 23 - Employee benefit expenses

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ics and bonus 557.26 579.44
fFwellare expenaes 7.90 11.14
iployee stoek oplion expenses 28.79 28.55
ibution to provident and ather funds 841 7-33
394 3.00
Less: Alloeated to construction cost (413.41) (382.29)
Tolal 232.89 247.17
-64% -61%

Nole 24 - Depreciation and amortisation expense

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars
mekonle March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on tangible asscts 0.91 2.17
Tolal 0.91 2.17
Note 25 - Finance costs
y Year ended Year ended
articulars
Partioalurs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest
Inlerest expeise 142.20 477.77
Interest on deluyed payment of statulory dies & 4.97
Less: Allocated to construction cost (142.20) (477.78)
Total - 4.96
Note 26 - Other expenses
2 Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rate taxes 33:40 0.08
Adver! ient and publivity 85.23 68,76
Commission and brokerage 378.19 6.39
Legal and professic ATges 73.80 61.15
Printing and stationery 080 0.81
d maintenance 0.70 1,12
0.71 -
106,20 =
T.J‘;,‘l.“\.me and communicalion expenses 23,05 4.17
Travelling and conveyance 27.04 7.70
Bank eharges 0.54 0 AR
[a]] ireed anpower cost 15.74 17.55
Tayment to anditois- Stalutory Audit Fees 1.96 083
Miscellatieonus experises 20,76 77.14
Less: Allocated to construction cost (23.85) (4.98)
Total 744.27 241.40
Note 26 (a) -Payments to auditors
0 Year ended Year ended
Particnlacs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Delails of payments to statutory auditors
- Statutory sudit fecs 1.96 083
Total 1.96 0.83
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Note 27 - Taxalion
27(a) - Income lax expeise

5 Asat As at
Particulars 2

“ B March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Curre
Current Lax Oﬂpw-r:iif(;l' the year 852.05 -
Total current tax expense 852.65 -
Deferred tax
Decrease/(inciease) in defesred tax assels 403.29 (110.A3)
Toial deferred tax expense/(benefit) 403.29 (110.63)
Income tax expense 1,255.94 (110.63)
27(b) - Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by statutory tox rates

Asgat Asat

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Loss for the year 4,067 36 {434.62)
Statulon rate applicable 25.17% 2h 0%
Tax expense at applicable tax rate 1,250.28 (113.00)
Change in Tax Rate - -
Adjsutinent of Tux Related to Easlier Year - B wught Forward Loss - 0.53
Titerest Expense 5.51 1.29
Income tax expense 1,255.79 {111.18)
27(c) - Deferred tax assels

The halance comprises temporary differences ributable to:

i As at As at
ParHiowas March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Difference between book d tax base of PPE 0.41 0.48
Carried [ d Business Ls and Unabsorhed Depreciation - 405.62
Disall 22.35 25.09
Provision niot allowed under Income Tax Act, 1661 (0.16) 748
Net deferred tax asscls 22.60 438.67
27(d) - Movement in Deferred tax assets

Charged/ i

5 Asat g Charged/ (credited) Asat

Particulars . (credited) to profit )
April o1, 2623 asid ioss to OCI March 31, 2024
Difference between book base and tux base of PPE 0.53 0.05 - 0.48
Carried d Business L and Unabsorhed Depreciation 300,20 (105.42) - 405.62
Disallowance v/s 538 17.71 (7.38) - 25.09
Provision not allowed under Incivme Tax Act, 1061 9.05 1.57 - 7.48
Total deferred tax assels 327.49 (111.18) - 438.67
Charged/ :

. As at i Charged/ (credited) Asat

Parliculars Whavih g1, 084 (credited) to profit t0 OCI March 31, 2025
and lass
Difference between hook hase and tax base of PPE 0.48 0.07 = 0.41
d Business Losses and Unabsorhed Depires iation 405 62 405 62 = &

25.09 2.74 22.35
Provision not allowed under Tncome Tax Aet, 1961 7.48 7.64 (0.16)
Total deferred tax assels 438.67 416.07 - 22,60
27(d) - The expiry schedule of the above unrecognised losses is as follows:

Asat Asat

Expiry date

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Expiry within 5 years

1,560.07

1,560.07
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Note 28 - Financial Value Meussurements

As at Asat

e 1 .
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Financial assets - Amortised eost

Lianis 60000 =
Dalances with hanks held as margin money deposits against guarantes d bocrowings 65.00 45.00
A cosh equivalents 1,358.29 8yR 45

balances other than cash and cosh equivalents - -
a ed on deposits with bainks 14.72 12.12

Trade receivahles 120 04 -
Total financial asscls 2,167.05 955.57

Financial liabilities - Amortised cost
Rorrowings 0.29 3,441.98
Trade payables 642.8¢ 235.43
Emplovee henafits puyable 42.42 51.80
Refundable towards cancelled unils 887 17.15
3 68 68 67.27
139.95

Total financial liabilities 903.10 3,813.72

(ii) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments thal are measured at amortised cost
and for which fair value 1

are disclosed in the financial statements.

Level 1: Level t hivcarc by ineludes financial instriments mea sured using guoted prices, The Mutual fund are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of ohservable macket data and rely as litile as possible on enlily-specifie estimates. If all
significant inpuls required to fair value an instrument are ohservable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If orie or more of the significant inputs is not based on ohservable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(iii) Valuation process

The finance department of the Compauy includes a team that performs the valuations of financial aeeets and labilities required for financial reporting
purposcs, including level 3 fair values.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, loans, other financial assels, current trade payables, borrowings and other financial liabilities are
considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

(iv) Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost - Level 3

Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Carrying value Tair value Carrying value Fair value

Financial assets
Balunees with hanks held as margin mongy deposils 65.00 65.00 45.00 45.00

inst guarantees and borrowings
g g

5!

Total financial asscls - 65.00 65.00 45.00 45.00

Nole 29 - Financial Risk Management
The Company’s aclivities expose it to a variety of financial risks namely credit risk, liguidity risk and market risk. The Company’s focus is to foresce the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects an its financial performance.

(i) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk thal counterparty will nat meet its ob
Financial instruments of the concern principally consist of cas

gations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss
1d cash equivelents, Therefore, eredit risk is minimal.

(ii) Liquidity risk

Liguidity is defined as the risk that the Company will not be ahle to setile or meet its abligatinns on time or at a reasonable price. Company's ohjective is
10, at all tine maintain eptimum levels of liquidity to meet its financial obligations. The company manages liguidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash
and cach equivalents. In addition, processes and policies relaled to such risks are overseen by senjor management.
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Maturities of ﬁndmial liabilities

The table sumnmiises the malurity p"'i-u, of con pany s ‘s financial Habiliti

o on contractnal undiscounted payments:

Less than One to four More than Four
Particulars one ycar years years Total
As at March 31, 2025
Burrowings 0.28 0.01 - 0.29
Trade payables 642.89 - = 642.89
Other financial Habilities 259.92 - - 259.92
903.09 0.01 - 903.10
As at March 31, 2024
Bortowings - 3.441.98 = 3,441.98
Trade payables 23543 - - 235.43
Oiher financial liabilities 136.31 - - 136.31
371.74 3,441.98 - 3,813.72

(iii) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises of two types of risk: inlerest rale risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affec ted by market risk include borrowings .

(iv) Interest risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fiture
Company's exposure to risk of ch

\<h flows of a financial instrament will Quetuate becanse of changes in market interest rates. The
5 in market rate is limited to borrowings which bear floating inferest rates

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rale risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will Ductuate because of a change in market interest rates,

The Company manages intercst rate risk by having a halanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate borrowings. The exposure of the Company's borrewing
to interest rate changes atthe end of the reporling peiiod is as follows:

(a) Intercst rate exposure
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Variahle rate borrowi

Fived rate bortowings 0.29 3,441.98
Total borrowings 0.29 3,441.98
(b) Sensitivity

Profit or luss is sensitive to higher / lower interest expense as a result of changes in interest rates. A 20 basis point increase or decreass is used when
reparting interest rate risk internally to key ms ‘ﬂ-c’ruu-ut persannel and represents management's assessment of the rea -Hnem]}' p-mnlﬂﬂ change in
tnterest rates, With all ather variahles held constant, the Company’s profit before tax will be impacted by a change in interest rate as follow

Increase [ (Decrease) in profit before
tax
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Particulars

Increase in intercst rate b) 20 bas pnm-;[zuhp-'\ ~ N
Decrease in interest rate by 20 basis points (26 bps) - =

Note 30 - Capital Management

For the purpose of the Campany’s capital management, eap dtal includes jssued equity capital and all other equity rescrves attributable to the equity

holders of the Company and borrowir

5.

The Cr-mp-u.v aiins to manage its capital effic h-nl]y so as to safeguard its shilily to continne as a going concern and to optimise retuns for it's
sharshalders, The capital structure of the C--mpnu} 1= ssed on management's judgement of the appropriate halance of key elements in order to meet its
stralegic 41.-{ day-to-day needs, The company cons mount of capital in proportion to risk and manages the capital structure in light of chan
in economic conditions and the risk characteristic i

The Company's aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital management, The Company's pulicy is to
maintain a stahle and strong capital structure with a focus on tolal e d*y 50 as to ﬂimu?dlil mu-—lnr, umnl S and miarket confidence and to sustain
i adjust, i its capital structure,

future development and growth of its business. The Company will tal
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Note 31 - Empleyee benefit obligations

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non-current .

Grainity 22,73 14.82

Current

Compensatad shavnces 27.11 22,72

Gealuity 3.42 2.54

Total 53.26 40.08

(i)Leave obligations

The leave obligations cover the Company’s liability for casual, sick and earned leave,

The amount of the provision of INR 27.11 (March 31, 2624 : INR 22.72) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an une mditional right
to defor selllement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take the full amount
of accrued leave or Tequire payinent within the next 12 manths, The following amounts reflect leave thal is not experted to be taken or paid within the

next 12 months

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Leave obligations not expected to be settled within next 12 months

20057

15.97

(ii) Defined eontribution plans
The Company has certain defined contr
iong. The contributions

as per reguls

(iii) Post employment obligations

Gratuity

The Company y;u\!lﬂ s for gratuity for em 1m vees in Indi
of 5 years are ¢

l"HIll

perind of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments,

Balance sheet amounts - gratuity

The amonnts recognised in the balance sheet and the moveinents in the net defined be

per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1572, Empl
ihle for grainity. The amount of gratuity payable on 1"4“r'|m-|||n-rl'tlmm!-ll'l. is t‘.'.e employess
.[....,..d.-d proportionately for 15 days salary m lhphrd fur the number of years
jons to recogiised funds in India. The Company does not fully fund the 1

lity and mai

nefit obli

ion plans. Contribnitions are ma de to provide nt fund in India for emplay
gistered provident fund administe red by the government. '1hen’r‘
the amount contributed and it hias no farther contractual nor any constructive ebligation, During the yeor, the C!'Iuimll} has recognised INR 8.41 (March

a1, zuzg: INR 7.33) in the standalone statemient of profit and loss or construe Vwork-in-progress.

gution over the year are as follows;

- at the tate of 127% of basic salur
tion of the Compaiiy is limited to

.5 who are in continuous service for a period
s last drawn hasic sal
e. The gratuity plan is a fmnirc'l plan and the Company makes
ains a target level of funding to be maintained over a

ary per month

Present value of

Fair value of plan

ohligation asscls Necamaant
As at March 31, 2023 12.25 - 12.25
Current senvice cost 2.10 - 2.10
'[{":i‘.Tr}'Tm:'.-.ﬁ-;.:ui In (Oul)/ Anhu;\i?inﬁi(]}i\- shinierits) s - =
Interest expense/(income) 0.90 - 0.90
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 3.00 - 3.00
Bemcasurements
(Cin ) loss from change in demog umplions 0.22 - 0.22
(Gain )/ loss from change in financial assumptions 0.09 - 009
Experience {gains)/losses 1.79 - 179
Total amount l'ewgmsed in other comprehensive income 2.10 - 2.10
]—'.l‘n}l;-_l}gr confribiations = ~ -
Benefit paymienis - - -
Liability Transferred Out/ Divestinents - - -
As at March 31, 2024 17.35 - 17.35

Particulars

Present value of

Fair value of plan

Net amount

obligation asscts

As at March 31, 2024 17.35 - 17.35
Current service cost 2.60 - 2.69
Interest expense/(incoine) 1.24 = 1.24
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 3.93 - 3.93
Remensurements

Returnon plan assets, excluding amount included in infer - - -
(Gain )/loss from change in demaographic assumptions 0.09 & 0.09
(Gain )/loss from chia in financial assumptions 0.57 = 0.57
Experience {pains)/h 5 4.18 = 4.18
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 4.84 - 4.84
]".u.p--_-;‘c. contributions - = -
Renelit payments - - -
Linhility Transferred Ont/ Divestinents - - -
As at March 31, 2025 26.12
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The net liability diselosed above relating to funded and unfunded plans is as below:

Particulars sisiat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Present value of funded obligations (26.12) (17.35)
Fairvalue of plon nesets - -
Deficit of funded plan (26.12) (17.35)
Unfunded |l','., NS s =
Deficit of gratuity plan (26.12) (17.35)
Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions
Particulars S an As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 7-17% 7-31%
Emf"“—'J ce turnover 17.0!;'.‘-5 20.00%
Salaty growth rate 10 00% 10.00%
Return on plan assels N.A, N.A.
Maortality rate Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2012-14 (Urban)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit abligation to chianges in the weighted principal assumptions by 1% is as below:

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Incirense in assumptions Decrease in assumptions
. As at Asat As at As at
Particulars
s March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Discount rate (€3] €] 1 1
Salary growth ruie 1 1 (6))] (1)
Employee tutnover (0) (o) 0 0
Th wove sensitivity analysis is based on a change inan o sumption while holding all ether assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to ocour,

1€ a!
and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated, When ealeulating the sensitivity of the defined Lenefit obligation to significant actiarial
asstmplions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation ealenlated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
perind) has been applied as when ealeulating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumplions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

(v) The major categories of plan asscts are as follows:

The plan aesel for the funded gratuity plan is administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC') as per the investment pattern stipulated for
Pension and Group Schemes fund by Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority regulations ie. 100% of plan assets are invested in insucer
e ged fimd. Quated price of the same is not available in active markst.

(vi) Risk exposure

Throvgh its defined benafit plans, the Company is exposed to & number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below :

Intercst rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the government securities rate will increase the present value of the liability red
higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market velue of the assels depending on the duration of asset.

Salary risk: The prescnt value of the defined benefit plan lishility is ealeulated by reference to the fulure salaries of members. As such, an increase in
the salary of the members moce than assumed level will increass the plan's liability.

Investment risk: The p
vields at the end of the re
planin India, it hasarels

esent value of the defined benefit plan lability is ealeulated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market
arting period on g 1s. If the return on plan ssct is belaw this rate, it will ereate a plan deficit. Currently, for the
vely balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments

wernment bo

Asset liability matching risk (ALM risk): The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of rule 101 of
Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk
Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payshle for life time and payable till retirement age anly, plan does not have any Jongevity risk.

Concenlration risk: Plan is having a coneentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance Company and a default will wipe out all the
assets. Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines,

(vii) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions
Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2025 is Nil (March 31, 2024 : Nil).
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The weighted averige Jduration of the delined henefit obli i

<. The expected maturity analysis of undiscaunted gratuity is as follow s

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

obligation is 7 yes

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting

1st following year

znd fallowing year
3rd fn'l"uwilig_'y_:\i'
4th following year 10

W w W

(ST S« SO ST - R R )

sth following year =
Sum of years 6 to 10 6
Suin of years 1 and shove 7

(viii) Group Employee option plan

The establishment of the Rustomjee Employee Stock Option Plan 2022 was ap proved by the parent shareholders on 11th May 2022, Under the plan,
partticipants ave granted eptions which vest at 25% cach year over the perind of four years of service from the grant date. Parlicipation in the plan is at the
board's discretion and no individual has a contractual right to participate in the plan or to receive any guaranteed benefits

Once vested, the options remain exercisable for a perind of four years, When exercisable, each aplion is convertible into one equity share.

Set out below is 2 suminary of options granted under the plan:

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Average exercise price per| Number of options | Average exercise Number of
share option (INR) price per share options
option (INR)
Opening balance 480 23,800 480 30,800
Granted during the year 480 4,897 480 3,000
Transferin /{oul) 480 (3.200) -
Forfeited during the year - - -
Clnsing balarice 480 35.397 480 33,800
During the curtent valuation periad, no options Lave been exe fsed and no ophions expired during the perinds covered in the above tables,
Shate options autstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices:
Grant date Vesting | Exercise price |Share options as at Fair value of
date (INR) 31 March 2023 option
Grant-1 01-08-2022 o1-Ang-23 480 8,450 191
Grant-1 01-08-2022 01-Aug-24 480 8,450 221
Grant -1 01-08-2022 01-Ang-25 480 8,450 247
Crant -1 01-08-2022 01-Ang-26 480 8,450 272
Grant -2 18-10-2023 18-Ocl-24 480 2,449 244
CGrant-2 18-10-2023 18-Oct-25 480 1,224 a7
Grant-2 18-10-2023 18-Oct-26 480 1,22 304

Stock oplions exercisahle as at March 31, 2024 is 7,700 with Weighted average remaining contractual life of options out standing at end of period is 4.84.

Weighted averags remaining contractual life of options cutstanding at end of period is 4.06.

Fair value of options granted

The fair value at gramt date is independently determined using the Black-Sche les Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the share price at grant dote and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-[ree interest rate for
the terin of the option.

The maodel inputs for options granted during the year ended March 31, 2024 inchudes;
Grant -1

a) Vested options are exercisable for a perind of four years after vesting,

b) exercise price: INR 480 (in absolule)

¢) grant date: Angust 01, 2022

d) share price at grant date: INR 499.34 (in absolute)

e) expectad price volalility of the compaiy's shares: 437

) Dividend yield: 0%

g) risk-free inlerest rate: 6.95% to 7.27%

Grant -2

a) Vested oplions are exercisahle for a perind of three years afler vesting.
b) exercise price: INR 480 (in ahsolute)

¢) grant date: October 18, 2023 :

d) share price at grant date: INR 562.95 (in ahsolute)

e) expected price volatility of the company's shares: 43%

f) Dividend yield: o

g) risk-lree interest rate: 7.45% to 7.49%

The expected price volatility is based on the histaric volatility (hased on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information,

Note 32 - Segment Reporting
The brard of directors (BOD) are the Company’s chief operating decision maker. Manageient his deter mined the operating segiments based on the
information reviewed by the BOD for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance,

Presently, the Company is engaged in only one segment viz 'Real estate and allied nctivities' and as such there is no separale reportable segment as per
Ind AS 108 'Operating Segmenis'. The Company has operations only within India.
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Note
1
A)

B)

)

D)

I
A)

B)

D)

33 - Related Party Transaction

Name of related parties and nature of relationship:

Where control exisis
Holding company:
Kevstong Realtors Private Limited
Fellow Suhsidiary:

Intact Duilders Private Limite
Rustorjee Realty Private Limited

Crest Property Rodutions Private Limited

Entity which has significant influence on the Company

Augusta homes Real Estate Private Limited
Key Management Persounel

Vineet Mehta

Raimesh Jogani

Karan Jogant

Nilesh B, Nimbalkar

Johnson F Alineida

Transactions with related parties
Transactions during the year

Particulars

For the Year ended
March 31, 2025

For the Year ended
March 31, 2024

Loan taken Repayment

Limited

Private Limited

Inietut expenses
altors Privale Lin ited
ymies Real Estate Private Limited

Employce benefit expense
Keystone Realors Private Limited
Augusta homes Real Estate Private Limited

Employce stock option expense
Koy stone Realiors Private Limited

Reimbursement of expens
Fevstone Realtors Private Lin

=S
ted

Oulsourced manpower cost
Creat Property Solutions Privale Limited

Roman Trani

Boman Irani

Legal & professional expenses - License Fecs

Legal & professinnal expenses - Licenise Fees (Prepaid)

242.66
1,159.71

2.68
139.22

215.76
107 82

2879

10142

14 62

50.69

3107

1,800 00

261.31
216.44

215.76
128 R4

Outstanding balances

Asat
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Loan Taken
Keystone Real

Htors Private Limited
Angu ta homes Real Estate Private Limited

Interest Payable

Keystone Realtors Private Limited

In iilders Private Limited
A h._. wies Real Estate Private Limited
Trade payables

Crest Property Solutions Private Limited
Boman Irani

Other Payables

Kexstone Realtors Private Limited
Prepaid Expense
Boman Irani

1,065.29

1.37
21.98

68 A8

31.07

Terms and conditions
All Related Party Transactions sntered duriing

the year were in ordis

ary conrse of the busing

ss and are
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Luccat Realtors Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 35 - Contingent liabilities
Contingent liubilities as at the clase of the year - NIL (Previous year - NIL)

Note 36 - Earnings per share

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Basic earning per share

(Lnss) for the yeax 2.711.42 (323.99)

Weighted cenuinher of equity shates 17,241 17,241

Rasic earning per share 21,526.69 (1,879.18)

Diluted earning per share

(Levss) for the year 2.711.42 (223.99)

Weighted average number of equity shares® 17,241 17,241

Diluted earning per share 21,526.69 (1,879.18)

Note 37 - Dues to micro and small enterprises
The Company has certain dies to s i
disclosire pursuant to the said act is as follows:

iers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Dey clopment Act. 2006 (MSMED Act), The

Particulars As atand for theyear  As at and for the year
ended March 31, 2025 ended March 31, 2024

a) Principal amonnt due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Actand remaining 106 14.61

unpaid as at year end.

b) Interest amount dise to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining - 0.01

unpaid as at year end,

¢) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyvond the - -

appe iinted vﬁ-.\)' duir 'u’:g ﬂ]é) ear.

d) Tuterest i,w;l'l, ather than under section 16 of MSMED Act, to Sl_l_L_tpHrl'S regist ed - -

under the MSMED Act, hevand the appointed day during the year.

&) Interest paid, under section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the - -

MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year.

£) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for - -

payr alicndy iade

g) Further interest remaining due and puy uhle for carlier yeurs - =

Note 37 - Assets pledged as security

The aggregale carrying amonnt of assets (inventory, trade recels bles and unhilled revenue) pledged as security for horrowings is INR Nil

(Maich 31, 2024: INR 19,792 .87)
Note 38 - Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Note 38.1- Unsatisfied performance obligation

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the cirrent Teporting period 1o lates to carried-forward contract liabilities:

L s S

Particulars

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Revernie rec lgi'r;-u'i_]( that was included in the contract Habilities halance at the
Leginning of the period

13,708 84 -

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contract price 22,257.88 7.33
Less: Discount 117563 -
Revenue from operalions 21,082.25 7.33

Note 38.2 - Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Year ended March 31, 2025

Year ended March 31, 2024

Timing of recognisation

Timing of recognisation

At a pointin time Quer tine Atapoint in time Over timme
Operating Revenue
Revenie from Projects 20,901.27 - - -
Other operating income
Others (including sals of 18058 = 7.33
construchion mats




Luceat Realtors Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 39 - Audit trail

As per the requirements of rule 3(2) of the Corpanies (Acconnts) Rules 2014 the Company uses accounting software for maintaining its hooks
of account that hove a feature of rea g audit teail of each and every transaction creating an edit log of each change made in the biooks of
seconint along with the date when such changes were made within such accounting software. This feature of recording andit trail has operated
throughout the year except for certain lransactions, changes made through spevific access and for direct database changes and no andit trail
features wete tampered during the yeur and have been preserved by the company as per the statulory requirement for record retention.

Nole 40 - Previous year fignres Lhave been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to cirrent year classification,

Note 41 - Additional Regulatory Information
i) Details of Benami property Held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding henami property nnder the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988

rent assels

The Conpany has hoirowi
q-l.n\'ln‘-il_v retuing or state

4 financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, However there are no requirements of filling
2z per the tevms of relevant agreements,

iii) wilful Defaulter

The con 7 has never been declared

s wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or gevernment or any government anthuority.

iv) Relationship with struck off companies
The company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Campanies Act, 1036.

v) Compliance with number of layers of e wnpanies

The company has complied with the number of layers preseribed under the Ce smpanies Act, 2013.

vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements

The rompany has not entered il any schemé of arrangement which has an accounting impact on cutrent or previous financial year.
vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any ather person{s) or entity(ies), including for
nnderst 1z that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
hehalf of the company (Utimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide amy gaarantes, security or the like to or on hehalf of the ultimate beneficia iies

g entities (Intermediaries) with the

A

The company kas not received any fund from any person{s) o entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded
in writing or othierwise) that the company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on

hehalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Deneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantes, security or the like on bebalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

viii) Undisclosed income

There is no income surrendered

been recordsd in g

or disclosed as income during the current ot previous year in the tax assessments under the Tneoma Tax Act, 1961, that has not

ix) Details of eryplo currency or virtual currency

The company has not Lraded or invested in cyplo currency or virtual eurzency during the corrent or previous yuor

x) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investmient property

The company has niot revalied its property, plant and equipment (inclading right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

Ope

xi) Registralion of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of O smpanies beyond the statutory period.

xii) Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions

The hartowings ohlained by the company finm banks and financial institutions have been applied for the puiposes for which such loans were was taken.




Lucecat Rexltors Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

As rapour atta hed report of even date

For MARKK & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Virm Noo: 117246W

Mukesh Maheshsvari
Partner
Meinbership No. : 049818

Plave - Mumbai
Date:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Luccat Realtors Private Limited
CIN: UyszooMHzo17P1C301799

Ramesh Jogani Nilesh'Wimbalkar
Ditector Director
DIN: oo024828 DIN: oy987014



